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         THIS ADDENDUM MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED. 
 

THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BECOME A PART OF THIS SOLICITATION. 
 

Amend BD1788, Asset Management Software, dated December 22, 2016, as follows: 
 

Please note, we have an additional requirement to add to the General Terms and 
Conditions. 
III. Preparation and Submission of Offer 

A. Preparation 
7. The entirety of the Offer and supplemental materials must not exceed 100 
pages.   

 
Below is the list of questions received with responses.  

Question Answer 

Does the district have an existing asset management 
system? 

Yes, the district uses the asset management module of our ERP 
system, Infor Lawson.  

What database is Infor Lawson based on? Microsoft SQL Server 

Are there desired results you are specifically looking for as 
an improvement over your existing system? 

Yes, there are several improvements the district is looking to 
achieve: 

 Improve school/department planning 

 Record as much information as possible about each asset 

 Empower asset holders to be more responsible for 
keeping asset records up to date (especially location, 
ownership, and disposition) 

 Improve asset lifecycle management 

 Improve reporting at school and district level. 

What is missing from the current asset management 
system? 

Please see the above question. Each of these things are either 
missing or unsatisfactory. 

Is the district interested in having physical inventory 
services offered as part of the proposal? 

Please feel free to include physical inventory services in your 
proposal in a manner that can be separated from the software 
purchase and support. 

Can we get more details concerning the timeline after final 
vendor selection? 

Please see Schedule of Activities on page 16 of the RFP. 
The District plans to award in late March 2017. It is desired that the 
solution is ready for Phase 1, to manage Chromebook assets, by 
July 1, 2017 and fully function by November 2017. The Phase 1 
go-live goal date is July 1, 2017. Phase 1’s projected focus is 
approximately 9,000 new Chromebooks assigned to students for 
the 2017/2018 School Year. Following Phase 1, Phase 2 will focus 
on device asset management and Phase 3 will include other non-
device assets such accessibility equipment, capital athletic 
equipment, and school equipment. Phase 1’s focus is subject to 
change if the needs of the District change prior to Round 2 
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Evaluation. 

Would you like barcode scanning hardware included in 
proposals? 

Please feel free to include scanning hardware in your proposal in a 
manner that can be separated from the software purchase and 
support. 

Can more details on existing barcode scanning equipment 
be provided? 

The Fixed Assets team has four portable Psion Workabout Pro 3 
scanning handhelds running Windows Mobile 6.1. Most school 
libraries (approx. 200) use Metrologic MS9520's attached to non-
portable workstations running Windows 7. 

Can we have some details on the quantities of barcode 
scanning equipment that would be needed? 

If the solution does not support a BYOD or mobile device-based 
client that utilizes camera-based scanning, then an estimate of 
needed scanning devices would include one for each school and 
many others for the supporting departments. Please use 250 as an 
estimate, keeping in mind that this number could change by the 
time the contract is awarded. 

What is the primary OS used within the district? Computers used by staff in administrative duties (including asset 
management) run on Windows 7. 

The RFP seemed to imply that you were interested 
primarily in Software as a Service (SaaS) solutions. Is the 
district interested in other solutions? 

The district will consider proposals for on premise, hosted, and 
SaaS solutions. 

In the RFP it references no/minimal customization, does 
that mean you are looking for an off-the-shelf solution? 

Yes, as much as possible given all the requirements. 

Please provide clarification of the different types of system 
users and the capabilities they should have (e.g. Fixed 
Assets personnel versus asset users). What is meant by 
the ability to edit asset records (and is requesting edits 
acceptable)? 

User descriptions can be found on p. 18 of the RFP. Round 2 may 
have additional clarifications based on solution capabilities. 
 
The ability to edit asset records is described as the ability to make 
or request changes to asset attributes as described in Part 5 of 
Appendix A. The district is open to receiving proposals from 
vendors representing solutions that utilize both direct user edits 
and requested edit-type functionality.  

Can you please describe the needs of the sandbox 
requirement in phase two of the selection process? 

The sandbox should be a demo environment configured and made 
available by the vendor that allows district employees to test the 
solution from district computers (or remote access). The sandbox 
should be configured using generic data provided by the vendor 
and includes access at differing levels of permission. No 
integration to other systems is expected or required. This will need 
to be made available to the district's evaluators throughout the 
round 2 process. 

Can requirements that apply only to on-
premises/hosted/SaaS solutions be denoted in general? 

All requirements are stated to the specifications required by the 
District. 
 
Please mark non-applicable fields as not available and specify in 
the comments column that the requirement is not applicable to 
your solution architecture. 

Can Infor Lawson's purchase order system provide line item 
records for new assets? 

Yes, we utilize asset templates to capture asset information. 

Are there identifying fields in existing records (i.e. in 
Lawson) that denote the ownership/location hierarchy? 

Yes, however the information is at a high-level location and 
currently does not provide specific details on room or owner.  

Could we get details or examples of data formats required 
by Infor Lawson? 

The data formats required to import/export data from/to Lawson 
depends on the information we plan to store and how we plan to 
interact with Lawson. This information will be determined during 
the planning process. However, we can process csv files 
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(FTP/SFTP) or web services. 

Are there concerns with SaaS solutions and data privacy? Yes. Where student data is used by the system, the vendor will be 
expected to comply with Federal and Colorado state laws (Student 
Data Transparency and Security Act) in the handling of this data. 
This will be addressed in specific standard contract language when 
a solution is selected. 

On page 23 of the RFP, a paragraph discussing Round 
Two evaluation describes an on-site presentation/interview 
that also includes what I interpret to be a demonstration of 
the proposed solution. It discusses a vendor sandbox 
environment for the committee and other interested parties. 
 
Is the intent of the “sandbox” something that the 
demonstration team will have access to to present the 
demonstration to the evaluation team, OR is this intended 
to be a deployed (and configured) instance that the 
evaluation team and others will have continuous access to 
in completing the Round Two evaluation? If this is simply 
stating that the demonstration will reflect an environment 
that is set up according to the needs of DPS for demo 
purposes that is very different from establishing a unique 
instance in which the solution can be continually evaluated 
by DPS (and others?) users until a Round Two decision is 
made. 

The sandbox should be a demo environment configured and made 
available by the vendor that allows district employees to test the 
solution from district computers (or remote access). The sandbox 
should be configured using generic data provided by the vendor 
and include access at differing levels of permission. No integration 
to other systems is expected or required. This will need to be made 
available to the district's evaluators throughout the round 2 
process. 

How does DPS currently manage/track textbooks? Textbooks are tracked and managed via our library management 
system. Textbooks are out of scope for the RFP. 

How does DPS currently manage/track other assets such 
as digital resources (eTextbooks, databases, courseware, 
etc.) Special Education equipment, STEM equipment, Band 
equipment, etc.? 

Digital resources are managed/tracked by our library services 
department and library management system. Digital resources are 
out of scope for this RFP. 
 
Some special education equipment, STEM equipment, and band 
equipment is in scope and tracked via our current asset 
management process within Infor Lawson's asset management 
module. Some of those assets are out of scope and tracked by 
various means by the responsible department. 

Page 7 of the RFP instructs us to include a redacted 
electronic copy of our proposal, and page 22 of the RFP 
instructs us to include “Tab N – Redacted Copy of the Bid 
Response”. Are we to include the redacted electronic copy 
and include a hard copy of the redacted proposal within our 
master hard copy? 

We only need one copy of the redacted version of your rfp 
response. An electronic version is preferred. 

Our solution is not web based, “Must Have” requirements 
like SLL are not applicable in a Desktop application using 
Active Directory. Should we mark those non-applicable 
fields as “Not Available” or “Current Functionality”? 

Please mark non-applicable fields as not available and specify in 
the comments column that the requirement is not applicable to 
your solution architecture. 

Would DPS like the option for your asset management 
system to have the capability to perform audits at a faster 
pace using RFID technology? 

Please feel free to include RFID-based auditing capabilities in your 
proposal in a manner that can be separated from the software 
purchase and support. 

Is there preference for a hosted solution? No, the district will consider proposals for on-premises, hosted, 
and SaaS solutions. 

There are a number of instances in which the requirements 
call for ability to interface or link to a number of different 

Please feel free to include integration costs in your proposal in a 
manner that can be separated from the software purchase and 
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applications—HR, student list, network discover, etc.  
 
Should the vendor include costs for every such mentioned 
applications? 

support. 

What Asset Management Systems have been 
demonstrated to staff members, when were those 
demonstrations, and who presented the demonstrations? 

We are not at liberty to discuss this at this time.  

Is there an estimated budget in place for this initiative? If 
so, what is that budget? 

This will be discussed during the negotiation period after round 
two. 

What format should the document submitted on the thumb 
drive be in? 

You can submit your response in Word or PDF except for the 
appendixes A & B they need to be returned as Excel documents. 

Should appendices A and B only be submitted on the 
thumb drive and not be printed and submitted as part of the 
hard copy submission? 

Yes, please. 

Can you re-verify the number and types of users? The numbers below concern the number of users the district would 
want to provide access to the system at different levels of 
permission (per p. 18 of the RFP): 

 Super Users – full system access and permissions: 40 
people. 

 Users – limited system access based by 
department/school but still can edit assets in their view: 
460 people. 

 View Rights Only – DPS employee wanting to log into the 
system to see what assets are assigned to them: 11,000 
employees (non-essential). 

The numbers below concern the system’s technical ability to 
handle users (per Technical Appendix 7.12 and 7.13), given the 
appropriate hardware: 

 System needs to support 2500 concurrent connections. 

 All system components have high scalability in 
performance and storage, with the ability to ultimately 
support over 150,000 possible users when fully deployed. 

In order to standardize the locations of assets throughout 
the District, is there a system of record for space data? If 
so, is this Tririga and can the data be accessed and 
synched? 

While the district does use Tririga as the space data system of 
record, accessing and syncing location data between that system 
and the asset management system is outside the scope of the 
RFP. 

Since the District uses Lawson as its ERP application, has 
Infor EAM been or being considered? 

We will be reviewing all interested vendor responses. 

[This question has been paraphrased]  
Do you have interest in seeing label printing solutions as 
part of the proposal? 

Please feel free to include label printing solutions in your proposal 
in a manner that can be separated from the software purchase and 
support. 

Can DPS identify the manufacturer, model, and operating 
system (e.g. Windows Mobile, Android) of the handheld 
barcode scanners the school system is currently using? 

The Fixed Assets team has four portable Psion Workabout Pro 3 
scanning handhelds running Windows Mobile 6.1. Most school 
libraries (~200) use Metrologic MS9520's attached to non-portable 
workstations running Windows 7. 

Is Infinite Campus self-hosted? Which database is used 
(e.g. SQL)? 
 
a. Infinite Campus does not seem to have a publicly 
accessible API guide, does DPS have access to an 
integration document? 

Infinite Campus is hosted on DPS servers. Infinite Campus uses 
Microsoft SQL. 
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Is Lawson self-hosted? Which database is used? 
 
a. Does DPS use Lawson to process purchase orders for 
the school system? 

Lawson is hosted on DPS servers. Lawson uses Microsoft SQL. 

Does DPS presently purchase pre-printed asset tags or 
self-generate them? 
 
a. If DPS is printing labels, what label printer(s) are being 
used? 
 
b. Is there a desire to acquire a system that can generate 
asset labels? 

DPS currently purchases pre-printed asset tags. 
 
Vendors are welcome to include label printing solutions in their 
proposals in a manner that can be separated from the software 
purchase and support. 

Per section III of the RFP “Preparation and Submission of 
Offer” (page 6): Unit prices shall be provided by the Vendor 
on the Solicitation's Specification and Pricing Form when 
required in conjunction with the prescribed method of award 
and shall be for the unit of measure requested. 
 
a. Where is the Solicitation’s Specification and Pricing Form 
located? 

Please see TAB M - Costs: Please provide pricing as described 
below. There is no formal pricing template for the RFP. 

We would like to provide DPS with the option to take 
advantage of Physical Inventory Audit services. To aid in 
determining the proposed cost and scope, can DPS provide 
a list of the asset types that falls under non-devices? 

Non-device assets that are within the scope of this project are 
assets $150 and above that are attractive and portable. 
 
Some examples include: 
Kilns, Lathes, Projectors, 3D printers, Electronics push carts, Lawn 
Mowers, Handheld radios, Computer monitors 24"+, Accessibility 
and mobility assistive technology, Custodial equipment, Kitchen 
equipment, vehicles, musical instruments over $5000. 

Does DPS plan to implement RFID asset tracking in any 
one of the three phases? If so are there specific asset types 
DPS would like to affix RFID tags to (approximate number 
of assets)? 

The current plan does not include RFID asset tracking and vendors 
are welcome to include RFID implementation in their proposals in a 
manner that can be separated from the software purchase and 
support. 

Does DPS want an entire redacted copy of the response to 
the RFP under Tab N, and a Redacted Copy of the 
response shipped with the Master Copy and the digital 
version on the Thumb Drive? Does the Redacted copy 
need an additional Tab N as a part of the redacted copy of 
the response? 

We only need one copy of the redacted version of your RFP 
response. An electronic version is preferred. 

Does the term "scanning" in the RFP (Req. #1.1) refer to 
barcode scanning? 

Yes. Ideally, the district is interested in BYOD-input; type solutions 
that allow for web or app based clients that utilize tablet or 
smartphone-based cameras to scan barcodes. 

Regarding requirements 2.2, 3.3 & 5.8, can you provide 
more detail concerning how location information needs to 
be structured? 

Currently, the district uses building->department->program-
>classroom, with classroom being the smallest location division. 
While there is potential for flexibility in this requirement, ideally, 5 
levels of hierarchy are desired. Physical location and ownership 
should be separated. 

In requirement 3.2, what integration will be needed to other 
systems? 

Active Directory for user access, permissions and assigning asset 
ownership, Student Information System (SIS, Infinite Campus) for 
assigning asset ownership and displaying ownership data within 
the SIS, Infor Lawson ERP for end of lifecycle and capital assets. 

Regarding 3.2, can you go into further detail concerning 
integration with Active Directory and your Student 
Information System? 

The district would like to use integration with Active Directory to 
provide access to the solution, determine permission level, and 
provide a list of employees for assigning asset ownership. 
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The district would like to use integration with our Student 
Information System (SIS) for providing a list of students for 
assigning asset ownership and ideally providing a list of assigned 
assets per user for display within the SIS. 

For integrating with Lawson (requirement 3.2), what are the 
primary points in the process where data will need to be 
passed back from the new solution? 

Movement and disposition of capital assets.  

One of the requirements (Appendix A Req. 3.6) mentions 
using data from systems like AirWatch, LANDesk, and 
Google Chrome Console. Are those used in the district 
today? 

Yes, all three systems are in use. 

Appendix A, req 3.6, what is the intended outcome of 
integrating with Google Chrome Console? 

The intended outcome of integration to Google Chrome Console is 
to use any available network location data to identify physical 
location on district premises.  

For the requirement concerning push-to-email reporting 
(Functional Appendix Req. 4.1), is it sufficient if the email 
provides a link to the report hosted on an FTP site? 

Yes. 

In Appendix A, req 5.1, DPS indicates the need to be able 
to move between multiple levels of location hierarchy: Does 
this mean the system should be able to manage sub 
locations (e.g. School -> Building -> Room)? 

Assets should be able to be assigned to and reported on based on 
locations and sub locations with room being the smallest 
delineation. 

In Appendix A, req 5.11, DPS indicates the need to be able 
to check assets in/out to students and employees. 
 
a. Does DPS need to complete this activity using a 
smartphone/tablet? 
 
b. Does DPS need to capture a signature on the touch 
screen from the recipient to acknowledge receipt? 
 
c. Does DPS employees and students have ID cards issued 
by the school system that have a barcode and/or unique 
ID? 

a. The ability to check assets in/out to students and employees via 
smartphone/tablet is not a must have requirement but is desired. 
 
b. The ability to capture a signature via touchscreen when 
checking out assets is desired but not a requirement. 
 
c. Students and employees are issued ID cards with unique IDs.  

Appendix A, req 5.18, DPS indicates the need to associate 
a picture with an asset record(s). Should the selected 
systems mobile app include a feature that allows users to 
take pictures of assets from within the application and 
attach them to a record? 

The mechanism described in the question is one of many possible 
mechanisms that could meet the requirement. 

Appendix A, req 5.31, DPS specifies a need to record 
information for maintenance events: 
 
a. Is DPS looking for a system that can schedule 
preventative maintenance? 
 
b. Is DPS staff completing maintenance for the asset 
inventory, and/or is a service contracted? 
 
c. The requirement states a need to record cost of repair, 
does this include details of parts and labor cost? 

a. Preventative maintenance scheduling is not a requirement of the 
RFP. 
 
b. DPS staff are responsible for maintenance of asset inventory. 
 
c. The ability to include parts and labor cost would be beneficial. 

In regards to requirement 6.18, are there other specific 
interfaces required beyond Gmail and Google Drive? 

Denver Public Schools has Google Apps for Education so any 
integration with the system and our Google Domain will need to be 
done through a service account using the OAuth 2.0 specification - 
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https://developers.google.com/identity/protocols/OAuth2ServiceAc
count#delegatingauthority 

Can DPS expand upon what it is looking for with Integration 
to Google Apps for Education (within requirement 6.18) and 
how the integration will serve users? 

The intended purpose of requirement 6.18 is like 6.8 in the ability 
to export data into formats supported by Google Drive and Gmail 
Attachments.  
Denver Public Schools has Google Apps for Education so any 
integration with the system and our Google Domain will need to be 
done through a service account using the OAuth 2.0 specification - 
https://developers.google.com/identity/protocols/OAuth2ServiceAc
count#delegatingauthority 

Appendix B, req 6.18, please describe the intended 
purpose of integrating with Google Apps for Education 
(Gmail and Google Drive). 

The intended purpose of requirement 6.18 is similar to 6.8 in the 
ability to export data into formats supported by Google Drive and 
Gmail Attachments.  
Denver Public Schools has Google Apps for Education so any 
integration with the system and our Google Domain will need to be 
done through a service account using the OAuth 2.0 specification - 
https://developers.google.com/identity/protocols/OAuth2ServiceAc
count#delegatingauthority 

Appendix B, req 6.3, the requirement states the need to 
have client defined user groups. Does this requirement 
mean that DPS must have a system that permits the 
custom creation of roles with permissions that can be 
customized by DPS? 

As per pg. 18 of the RFP, the District will need to assign roles to 
the following permission types: 

 Super Users – full system access and permissions: 40 
people. 

 Users – limited system access based by 
department/school but still can edit assets in their view: 
460 people.  

 View Rights Only – DPS employee wanting to log into the 
system to see what assets are assigned to them: 11,000 
employees (non-essential). 

Can you please clarify technical requirement 6.8 and the 
reference to popular applications? 

Ability to extract data and/or reports in Excel and Adobe Reader 
supported formats. 

In regards to requirement 6.8, what specific interfaces are 
required? 

Ability to extract data and/or reports in Excel and Adobe Reader 
supported formats. 

Appendix B, req 6.8, please describe the desired integration 
with Microsoft Office. 

Ability to extract data and/or reports in Excel and Adobe Reader 
supported formats. 

Appendix B, req 6.9 (specifically 6.9.2, 6.9.5), Is DPS 
requiring that a system provide an access point to archive 
and purge data from the database directly from the 
dashboard? Please describe desired functionality. 

Having the ability for Denver Public Schools to control the archive 
and data purge process from the dashboard would be ideal. We 
understand that this is a complex process however and would like 
to work with the vendor to determine a process for this. 

Appendix B 6.9.2 refers to the purging and archiving of 
data. In a SaaS solution, this may not be possible. Would 
you please clarify? 

Due to the need for the solution to be Multi-Tenant and comply 
with the new Colorado Student Data Transparency Act for purging 
data related to students this is a Must Have requirement. 

Can you please describe the need for requirement 6.9.2 to 
be a Must Have? Are there considerations made for a 
Saas, vendor hosted application where DPS doesn't have 
access to perform this function? 

Due to the need for the solution to be Multi-Tenant and comply 
with the new Colorado Student Data Transparency Act for purging 
data related to students this is a Must Have requirement. 

Please expand on requirements 6.9.6 and 6.9.7 to provide 
context. 

These requirements are for compliance to monitor user activity 
within the system and report on potential fraud or misuse. 

In requirement 7.10 are you asking for dating to tables 
when actions are taken with assets? 

Yes 

Can you expand on what context requirement 7.11 may 
apply to the software? 

When new features or functionality are configured or developed, 
there is an environment to test them before deploying to the 
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production environment. 

Appendix B, req 7.12, The requirement states that the 
system needs to be able to support 2500 concurrent 
connections (assumed user and integrated system 
connections): 
 
a. Does DPS anticipate needing a system that can support 
2500 concurrent connections in Phase 1, 2, or 3? … or is 
this requirement stating the system must be capable of 
scaling up to that amount of concurrent connections? 
 
b. Approximately how many concurrent connections will the 
system need to be able to support for each phase (1, 2, and 
3)? 

a. While DPS does not expect the need for 2500 concurrent users 
in the foreseeable future, the system should be capable of scaling 
to support this number of concurrent users. 
 
b. The system needs to be able to support the number of 
concurrent connections as specified in the scope of work and any 
additional clarifications concerning the number of users needed 
(p.18, subsection Profile). 

There are some potentially conflicting numbers concerning 
users in the body of the RFP and technical requirements. 
Can these be clarified? 

The numbers below concern the number of users the district would 
want to provide access to the system at different levels of 
permission (per p. 18 of the RFP): 

 Super Users – full system access and permissions: 40 
people. 

 Users – limited system access based by 
department/school but still can edit assets in their view: 
460 people. 

 View Rights Only – DPS employee wanting to log into the 
system to see what assets are assigned to them: 11,000 
employees (non-essential). 

The numbers below concern the system’s technical ability to 
handle users (per Technical Appendix 7.12 and 7.13), given the 
appropriate hardware: 

 System needs to support 2500 concurrent connections. 

 All system components have high scalability in 
performance and storage, with the ability to ultimately 
support over 150,000 possible users when fully deployed. 

Appendix B, req 7.16.1, Can DPS provide examples of how 
the embedded iFrames would be used by the school 
system? 

Many web-based systems do not allow for the ability to embed 
their system within an iFrame on another web based system 
without a configuration change. We maintain portals for our 
Principals, Teachers, Administrators that we would prefer to 
embed the asset management system in so that it is a contiguous 
UI experience.  

Is requirement 7.19 for inventory actions or reporting 
functionality? 

Both. An effective date is usually designated in a system for when 
an item might be in use in the future. For example, we might be 
delivering assets to a school that will have an effective date for 
when they will be in use. 

Requirements 6.4, 7.22, 7.26, 7.3 refer to workflow in one 
manner or another, can DPS explain what it in mind and 
what the workflow invisions? 

The routing of the request or process (i.e. workflow) will need to be 
different for some assets vs others depending on school site or 
department. For example, the receipt of specific equipment in a 
school might need approval by multiple people while other 
equipment might only need one person's approval or no approval. 

Appendix B, req 7.22, please explain DPS’s concept of 
controlling the priority of workflows (e.g. Does this mean 
each user's outstanding workflows are shown in a list sorted 
by defined priority ratings?). 

Yes, and that to a certain extent the system also has a smart 
routing based workflow for assets. For example, if a batch of 
laptops are barcoded for a school and then approved it 
automatically moves those laptops into the queue for the 
designated site based asset manager to approve. 
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Can you elaborate on how you want the software to operate 
in regards to requirements 7.22-7.28? 

The routing of the request or process (i.e. workflow) will need to be 
different for some assets vs others depending on school site or 
department. For example, the receipt of specific equipment in a 
school might need approval by multiple people while other 
equipment might only need one person's approval or no approval. 

Appendix B, req 7.25, please explain the meaning of (an 
example would be helpful): “System will sequence multiple 
workflow based on user-defined rules”. 

In Denver Public Schools an asset will go through many different 
users during the process. The asset will be received by the 
warehouse, then on to our asset management group, then to the 
school or department, and finally on to the user. Having user-
defined rules for different asset scenarios is the reason for this 
requirement. 

In regards to requirement 7.26:  
a. Can we get a use-case for this requirement or a 
clarification of what process is to be scheduled or 
controlled?  
b. Is this specific to automated workflows or system 
scheduled maintenance?  

a. One potential use-case is for the system to alert an asset owner 
when an asset's age hits a user-defined expiration date.  
 
b. This requirement is specific to automated workflows. 

Appendix B, req 7.26, please explain the meaning of (an 
example would be helpful): “Provides system-wide calendar 
which can be updated online by the user to schedule 
processing or control processing of parameters”. 

One potential use-case is for the system to alert an asset owner 
when an asset's age hits a user-defined expiration date. 

Can you please clarify references to workflow in the 
technical requirements? 

The routing of the request or process (i.e. workflow) will need to be 
different for some assets vs others depending on school site or 
department.  

Appendix B, req 7.4 (specifically 7.4.3 and 7.4.5), DPS 
indicates that system security should be based on Records 
and Routing. We assume “security features” refers to 
adjustable permission control setting… Can DPS elaborate 
on the security requirement for “Records” and “Routing” 
(use case examples would be helpful)? 

For both records and routing, we would expect that the system 
only allows the security context for specific users. An example 
might be the owner of the record to move it from one location to 
another and the ability for a system administrator to have global 
rights as a security context. 

Can you clarify what is meant by records in technical 
requirement 7.4.3? 

A collection of the asset and the owner in the database, for 
example a Samsung chromebook owned by Student A. 

Provide detail regarding what security requirements you 
have for routing as referred to in 7.4.5? 

The specific requirements will be shared with the final vendor 
selected, but personal data needs to be hidden from some users 
for security reasons 

Elaborate on requirement 7.56 for protection. That the security context of the script doesn't allow for full trust 
access to other system functions. For example, the script that 
executes a report doesn't also have the rights to change a user 
security context. 

In requirement 7.62.x how are privileges/access defined for 
each entry? 

The specifics of privileges required for each level will be shared 
with the final vendor when selected and will vary based on user 
privileges within each individual system.  

Appendix B, req 7.71, specifically what data is anticipated 
to be extracted from the selected asset management and 
imported into the Student Information System? 

Student information will be used to assign assets. Data imported 
into the Student Information System would only be related to this 
activity. 

Appendix B, req, 7.72 please explain the purpose of 
integrating with Clever or IMS Global to obtain the roster of 
district schedules, students, and staff? How will this 
information be used in the asset management system? 

Many of our devices that will be a part of this system will be 
assigned to students and having the asset management system 
leverage a roster integration system like Clever or specification like 
IMS Global's One Roster will enable the asset management 
system to maintain the roster of the students who are assigned the 
devices. 
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In regards to requirements 7.9, 7.10, and 7.19, could you 
please define what is meant by effective-date and effective-
dating? 

Tables should capture dates of when actions are taken with 
particular assets for reporting and audit tracking 

 
 
 
Due date and time: January 30, 2017 
3:00 p.m. local standard time 
at 780 Grant Street, Denver, CO 
 
If your proposal has been submitted and you wish to amend it, please modify your proposal on 
company letterhead.  The amended proposal must be received prior to the time and date set for 
the proposal opening.  Each modification submitted to the District's Strategic Sourcing Office 
located at 780 Grant Street, must have Vendor’s name and return address and the applicable 
RFP number and title of the RFP clearly marked on the face of the envelope. 
 
If more than one modification is submitted, the modification bearing the latest date of receipt by 
the District's Strategic Sourcing Office will be considered the valid modification. 
 
This addendum must be acknowledged, whether or not you amend your proposal. 
 
 

PRINT OR TYPE YOUR INFORMATION 

Name of Company: ____________________________________________ Fax: _____________ 

Address: ________________________ City/State: ________________ Zip: ______________ 

Contact Person: ___________________ Title: _____________________ Phone: ___________ 

Authorized Representative’s Signature: ____________________________ Phone: ___________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ Title: _____________________ Date: _____________ 

 Approved by: ______________ Date: _____________ 

 Reviewed by: ______________ Date: _____________ 

 


